
From: U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services <uscis@public.govdelivery.com>  
Sent: Monday, April 29, 2024 4:10 PM 
To:  
Subject: USCIS Reminds Certain Employment-Based Petitioners to Submit the Correct Required Fees 

We are updating our Frequently Asked Questions on the USCIS Fee Rule to help certain employment-based 
petitioners understand how to submit the correct required fees.   

New FAQ: 
Q. How can I make sure that my filing is not rejected at intake for incorrect fees?

A. At intake, we determine whether the payment you submitted matches the correct fees due. If you do not
submit the correct fee, we must reject your form, even if you have submitted an overpayment. Please see our
Filing Fees page for more details.

If you are submitting one of the following forms, the required fees depend on how you answer the form’s 
questions about your status as a nonprofit or small employer.  

Form I-129, Petition for a Nonimmigrant Worker:  
Part 1, Question 6 asks “Are you a nonprofit organized as tax exempt or a governmental research 
organization?” If you answer “Yes,” then you must submit the proper payment for a nonprofit, and not for a small 
employer. To determine whether you qualify as a nonprofit, please refer to page 7 of the Form I-129 Instructions.  

Part 5, Question 15 asks “Do you currently employ a total of 25 or fewer full-time equivalent employees in 
the United States, including all affiliates or subsidiaries of this company/organization?” If you answer “Yes,” then 
you must submit the proper payment for a small employer (unless you checked “Yes” in Part 1, Question 6 for 
nonprofits, as described above).  

In addition, Part 5, Question 14 asks for your “Current Number of Employees in the United States.” If you check 
“Yes” to Part 5, Question 15, and you answer Question 14 with a number greater than 25, then your supporting 
documentation should demonstrate how you calculated the number of full-time equivalent employees as 25 or 
fewer. If we cannot determine the number of full-time equivalent employees, we may reject your petition.  

Form I-129CW, Petition for a CNMI-Only Nonimmigrant Transitional Worker:  
Part 1, Question 8 asks “Are you a nonprofit organized as tax exempt or a governmental research 
organization?” If you answer “Yes,” then you must submit the proper payment for a nonprofit, and not for a small 
employer. To determine whether you qualify as a nonprofit, please refer to page 3 of the Form I-129CW 
Instructions.  

Part 5, Question 14 asks “Do you currently employ a total of 25 or fewer full-time equivalent employees in 
the United States, including all affiliates or subsidiaries of this company/organization?” If you answer “Yes,” then 
you must submit the proper payment for a small employer (unless you checked “Yes” in Part 1, Question 8 for 
nonprofits, as described above).   
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In addition, Part 5, Question 13 asks for your “Current Number of Employees in the United States.” If you check 
“Yes” to Part 5, Question 14, and you answer Question 13 with a number greater than 25, then your supporting 
documentation should demonstrate how you calculated the number of full-time equivalent employees as 25 or 
fewer. If we cannot determine the number of full-time equivalent employees, we may reject your petition.  
 
 
Form I-140, Immigrant Petition for Alien Workers:  
Part 1, Question 5 asks “Are you a nonprofit organized as tax exempt or a governmental research 
organization?” If you answer “Yes,” then you must submit the proper payment for a nonprofit, and not for a small 
employer. To determine whether you qualify as a nonprofit, please refer to page 3 of the Form I-140 Instructions.  
 
 
Part 1, Question 6 asks “Do you currently employ a total of 25 or fewer full-time equivalent employees in the 
United States, including all affiliates or subsidiaries of this company/organization?” If you answer “Yes,” then you 
must submit the proper payment for a small employer (unless you checked “Yes” in Part 1, Question 5 for nonprofits, 
as described above).   
 
 
In addition, Part 5, Question 4 asks for your “Current Number of U.S. Employees.” If you check “Yes” to Part 1, 
Question 6, and you answer Part 5, Question 4 with a number greater than 25, then your supporting documentation 
should demonstrate how you calculated the number of full-time equivalent employees as 25 or fewer. If we cannot 
determine the number of full-time equivalent employees, we may reject your petition.  
 
 
Existing FAQs:  
For your convenience, we are also highlighting the below existing FAQs.  
  
Q. What is the Asylum Program Fee and who pays it?  
  
A. The Asylum Program Fee ($600) is a new fee paid by employers who file either Form I-129, Petition for a 
Nonimmigrant Worker; Form I-129CW, Petition for a CNMI-Only Nonimmigrant Transitional Worker; or 
Form I-140, Immigrant Petition for Alien Worker. This fee helps fund the asylum program. The fee rule 
includes special discounts for nonprofits and small employers, as described further below.  
  
All the work at USCIS is connected—when we have a more fully funded corps of asylum officers, our non-asylum 
officers can concentrate more exclusively on adjudicating cases from employers and other filers, bringing down 
processing times for everyone.  
  
Q. How do I pay the Asylum Program Fee? Is there a separate form or paperwork?  
  
A. Payment of the Asylum Program Fee does not require a separate form or paperwork. If you pay by check 
or money order, you should submit the Asylum Program Fee separately. If you pay online by credit card, you may 
use one credit card form for all fees, including the Asylum Program fee.   
  
Q. If separate fees are required when I file multiple forms together, may I pay with one check?  
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A.  No. We are transitioning to electronically processing immigration benefit requests, which requires us to 
use multiple systems to process multi-form submissions. We may reject your entire package if you submit a 
single, combined payment for multiple forms.  
  
Q. If I file forms online such as an H-1B petition (Form I-129) on or after April 1, 2024, may I 
submit one credit card form that includes the total filing fee amount (Form I-129 fee, anti-
fraud fee, American Competitiveness and Workforce Improvement Act fee, Asylum Program 
Fee, and premium processing filing fee if applicable)?  
  
A. Yes. You may submit one credit card form for the entire fee amount, including the form fee and additional fees.  
  
Q. How does the Asylum Program Fee apply when submitting multiple petitions due to the limit of 25 
named beneficiaries on each petition?  
  
A. The petitioning employer must pay the appropriate Asylum Program Fee for each Form I-129 filed, unless they 
qualify for the nonprofit exemption discussed further below.  
  
Q. What are the fee discounts for small employers?  
  
A. The fee rule defines small employer petitioners as those with 25 or fewer full-time equivalent employees. Such 
petitioners will pay $300 rather than the full $600 for the Asylum Program Fee.  
  
In addition, for the fees for Form I-129 and Form I-129CW, small employers will pay a discounted fee of up 
to 50% off. For the precise discounted fees, please see the full fee schedule, Form G-1055.  
  
Q. What is a “full-time equivalent employee” in determining whether a petitioner qualifies for the 
small-employer discounts to the Form I-129 fee and Asylum Program Fee?  
  
A. Generally, the number of full-time equivalent employees equals the number of full-time employees plus the 
number of part-time employees aggregated to full-time equivalents at the time of filing. The IRS defines an employee 
as an individual who receives “wages,” with applicable taxes deducted, along with Social Security and unemployment 
deductions, and who receives a W-2 reporting their income.     
  
Q. Do noncitizen workers count toward the number of full-time equivalent employees?  
  
A. You should count all current workers you employ at the time of filing, regardless of immigration status.  
  
Q. Do seasonal workers count as full-time equivalent employees?  
  
A. Full-time equivalent employees include seasonal nonimmigrant workers if they are paid as employees, 
not contractors. You should count all seasonal workers you employ at the time of filing.  
  
Q. Do the beneficiaries on the petition count as full-time equivalent employees?  
  
A. The beneficiary of a petition does not count as an employee unless they are currently working for the 
petitioner as an employee at the time of filing.  
  
Q. Should a petitioner count only those full-time equivalent employees listed under the 
petitioner’s Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN)? What about employees listed 
under affiliated FEINs (for example, affiliated offices in different regions)?  
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A. Petitioners should include all the petitioner’s full-time equivalent employees in the United States, 
including its affiliates and subsidiaries. The petitioner should not, however, include additional employees 
from the petitioning employer’s parent company or the parents of any affiliates. In other words, in an organizational 
chart that begins with the petitioner, count down and horizontally, including the petitioning employer’s affiliates and 
subsidiaries, but do not count upward toward the petitioner’s parent or its affiliates’ parents.  
  
Q. What proof is needed to show the number of full-time equivalent employees?  
  
A. The instructions for Forms I-129 and I-140 state that possible evidence includes a copy of the petitioner’s 
most recent IRS Form 941, Employer’s Quarterly Federal Return; or IRS Form 943, Employer’ Annual Tax Return for 
Agricultural Workers. However, petitioners may submit any relevant evidence that shows the number of full-time 
equivalent employees by a preponderance of the evidence.  
  
Q. Because the IRS Form 941 includes salary information, can petitioners redact this 
information for privacy reasons?  
  
A. Yes. Such redaction is permissible when the evidence is only to support eligibility for a reduced fee and 
the redacted information is not otherwise relevant to the adjudication.  
  
Q. What additional information or evidence should a petitioner submit if they employ fewer full-time equivalent 
employees than the number of employees listed on IRS Form 941 or 943?  
  
A. Petitioning employers may submit any relevant evidence to show their actual number of full-time equivalent 
employees and must establish that number by a preponderance of the evidence. The petitioning employer should 
explain why the actual number of full-time equivalent employees differs from the number on their Form 941 or Form 
943.  
  
Q. For H-2A petitions filed by a U.S. agricultural producer association that is named as a 
joint employer on the temporary labor certification, would each joint employer have to submit 
evidence of their number of full-time equivalent employees with the Form I-129? Or just the association?  
  
A. The fee reduction for small employers is based on the number of full-time equivalent employees of the 
petitioning employer. This employee count does not involve joint employers listed on the temporary labor 
certification unless they are affiliates or subsidiaries of the petitioner.   
  
Q. Will petitioning employers that use a professional employer organization (PEO) still be 
subject to the full Asylum Program Fee even if the petitioning company has 25 or fewer 
employees?  
  
A. Petitioning employers who outsource certain functions through a PEO should not count the PEO’s full-
time equivalent employees in determining whether the petitioner qualifies as a small employer. However, in the 
absence of a Form 941, the petitioner must submit alternate documentation to confirm how many full-time 
equivalent employees they currently employ.  
  
More Information  
You can find additional filing fee information by visiting our G-1055, Fee Schedule and Frequently Asked 
Questions on the USCIS Fee Rule pages.  
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For more information on USCIS and its programs, please visit uscis.gov or follow us on X (formerly 
Twitter), Instagram, YouTube, Facebook, and LinkedIn.     
  

 

Please do not reply to this message.  See our Contact Us page for phone numbers and e-mail addresses. 

 

 
 

 
 

AILA Doc. No. 24050102. (Posted 5/1/24)

https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9..e1_QPycCd9qGvvxOMxjWF0VdrTQNx5TDi0JLTgR64I4/s/2985165432/br/241541869572-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9..digK6L4ZIp__C0F9WivJU-smBAFd66BY23GVQYs_Sps/s/2985165432/br/241541869572-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9..digK6L4ZIp__C0F9WivJU-smBAFd66BY23GVQYs_Sps/s/2985165432/br/241541869572-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9..QpMssgU1msXdS1evYLDKvWvh0XpBRI55akTaX98lGlI/s/2985165432/br/241541869572-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9..wJkRGT0KGCm9Y8UDFpvxctHJWK0RJ4jr6t5IC7R15Ug/s/2985165432/br/241541869572-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9..16sB1PI-TV_q68-whXa3hV6JKQXa2OcJn_REXSYajzQ/s/2985165432/br/241541869572-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9..MUKXX9MnJKDj7sHoQCVasnyc3HxvdVGBZrLrCOtiFb0/s/2985165432/br/241541869572-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTQsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vd3d3LnVzY2lzLmdvdi9hYm91dC11cy9jb250YWN0LXVzIiwiYnVsbGV0aW5faWQiOiIyMDI0MDQyOS45NDA0MTMyMSJ9.fHc3hJOGMGn6ad_qbyEgtQaKtrZnSeuskUecy1TtePI/s/2985165432/br/241541869572-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTUsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vd3d3LnVzY2lzLmdvdi8iLCJidWxsZXRpbl9pZCI6IjIwMjQwNDI5Ljk0MDQxMzIxIn0.bhTS8VFGTv7wE1IU_hJTaWX4yj42htHckqp1S7eZWHI/s/2985165432/br/241541869572-l



